
The Hon Julia Gillard MP 
Deputy Prime Minister 
Minister for Employment & Workplace Relations  
Minister for Education 
Minister for Social Inclusion 
House of Representatives 
Parliament House 
Canberra ACT 2600 
 
14 October 2009 
 
Dear Julia 
 
I am writing to you in my capacity as a current Local Government Councillor for the City of Ryde and also 
the Executive Convenor of the Paid Parental Leave Campaign for the Australian Local Government 
Women’s Association (NSW). 
 
I spoke with your office earlier today regarding concerns that I have over what appears to be a clear attempt 
by the NSW Local Government Shires Association (LGSA) to manipulate the pending Federal Paid Parental 
Leave scheme as a way of diminishing its future responsibilities under the NSW Local Government 
Employees Award for the continuation (or expansion of) employer based paid maternity leave. 
 
To provide some context, at the October 2008 NSW Local Government Association (LGA) Conference in 
Broken Hill the following motion was unanimously adopted by Conference delegates: 

“That the Conference support the provision of 18 weeks paid maternity leave and 2 weeks paid paternity 
leave, as a standard condition for all NSW Local Government employees.” 
 
This historic decision was the highlight of the Conference and many Conference Delegates thought that it 
would be instrumental in positioning the NSW Local Government sector as a leader nationally in the 
implementation of family friendly HR policies. A key motivator for the motion was the desire to attract and 
retain quality staff within the NSW Local Government sector. A cost benefit analysis revealed that the 
increased paid parental leave proposal would effectively be cost neutral and in terms of reducing costs 
associated with recruiting and retraining staff, would actually save Councils money over the longer term. 
 
The current NSW Local Government Employees Award (which expires in November 2010) provides for 
nine weeks paid maternity leave. One of the reasons cited to ALGWA for the drift of women from the local 
government sector to other Government (State and Federal) agencies is their more generous paid maternity 
leave provisions. As such, the motion at the 2008 LGA Conference sought to redress this and to firmly 
position the NSW Local Government sector legitimately as an Employer of Choice and a leader nationally in 
progressing increased paid parental leave provisions. 
 
Following the October 2008 LGA Conference, the decision for increased parental leave provisions was 
reflected in the LGA’s “Record of Decisions”. But, the LGSA staff then produced another document, called 
“Policy Statements arising from the 2008 Conference” and this document was silent in relation to the Paid 
Parental Leave decision of the 2008 Conference. 
 
When I made urgent inquiries as to why the most significant policy decision of the Conference had been left 
out I was informed in no uncertain terms by the LGSA that it had been deliberately omitted.  
 
The reality is that LGSA has not made any attempt to implement the LGA Conference decision of October 
2008 (see attached article from the Northern Star, Lismore).  
 
In fact, in June of this year when ALGWA women were talking to delegates at the NSW Shires Conference, 
the LGSA called the police and had us rounded up like common criminals. Our “crime?” Talking quietly to 
Shire Conference delegates about the motion that had been moved at the LGA Conference the previous 
October and urging Shire delegates to support it at their Conference as well.  
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This year, the 2009 LGA Conference will be held in Tamworth (25-28 October), and the business papers 
were published on the LGSA website last week. The LGA Executive has put forward a motion that 
effectively seeks to significantly wind back the 2008 LGA Conference decision on increased paid parental 
leave. Specifically the motion says: 

“That the Local Government Association supports an increase in the future Award’s paid maternity leave 
provisions to 18 weeks on full pay or 36 weeks on half pay where such increase in the Award entitlement 
does not apply in addition to the benefits provided by the Federal Government’s paid maternity leave 
scheme.” 
 
This motion is a clear departure from the 2008 LGA Conference decision, which related only to the NSW 
Local Government Employees Award and made no reference to the Federal Government’s Family 
Assistance Policies (existing or proposed). 
 
I have read the documentation provided by the Federal Government on the proposed Paid Parental Leave 
scheme and it is made clear that the intent of the Federal Government’s Paid Parental Leave is not to create a 
situation where an organisation can wind back its existing paid parental leave provisions. However what is 
alarming about the LGA Executive motion on the 2009 Conference Business paper is that if it is carried, it 
could mean that in the renegotiation of the NSW Local Government Employees Award negotiations (which 
is imminent) not only will the 18 weeks paid maternity leave and 2 weeks paid paternity leave provisions 
endorsed at the 2008 LGA Conference get scuttled, we might actually see the existing nine weeks of the paid 
maternity leave (in the current Award) totally removed as an employee entitlement. The LGSA could argue 
that the retention of the existing nine weeks (let alone anything greater) would be in conflict with the caveat 
in the proposed 2009 LGA Executive motion which says that the increased parental leave provisions in the 
Award “does not apply in addition to the benefits provided by the Federal Government’s paid maternity 
leave scheme” 
 
ALGWA is campaigning strongly to defeat the proposed 2009 LGA Executive motion and ensure that the 
2008 LGA decision is implemented as part of the NSW Local Government Employee Award negotiations. 
 
As a Labor Councillor, it pains me greatly to admit that anything Joe Hockey says might be accurate… But I 
noted his comments in relation to the Federal Government’s Paid Parental Leave proposal, when he said,  

“My fear about this being stretched out to 2011 is that the employers that want to continue, or do implement 
maternity schemes, will just simply pull up stumps…Because now they know that the Rudd government with 
taxpayers money is going to step into the breach, they don't need to do anything." (Sun Herald 10 May 2009) 

I think that the LGSA intends to do precisely that…. to use the Federal PPL scheme as a mechanism for 
winding back existing Award conditions and stopping future consideration of any increased provisions.  

Julia, this is a very serious issue and given the short timeframe before the 2009 LGA Conference, ALGWA 
NSW would welcome your urgent clarification that the proposed Federal Paid Parental Leave scheme cannot 
be used to dismantle or over-ride existing policy decisions on employer based paid parental leave provisions.  
 
ALGWA NSW intends to highlight this issue in the media ahead of the 2009 LGA Conference and we would 
very much welcome a public statement of support from yourself, that congratulates the NSW LGA 
Conference for its visionary 2008 decision in relation to increased paid parental leave provisions - and notes 
the importance of these binding LGA Conference decisions in relation to future NSW Local Government 
Employees Award negotiations. 
 
If you require any additional information please feel free to contact me  

Thank you very much for your time and I look forward to your response. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Cr Nicole Campbell 
Convenor – Paid Parental Leave campaign 
Australian Local Government Women’s Association (NSW) 
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